
 

 
611 Pennsylvania Ave SE #231 

Washington, DC 20003 
www.aflegal.org 

August 15, 2023 

Christine Park-Gonzalez, Director 
Anna Y. Park, Regional Attorney 
Los Angeles District Office 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
255 East Temple St., 4th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

Investigation Request: Activision/Blizzard Inc. 

Dear Ms. Park-Gonzalez: 

America First Legal Foundation (“AFL”) is a national, nonprofit organization working 
to protect the rule of law, due process, and equal protection for all Americans. We 
write under 29 C.F.R. § 1601.6(a) to request a Commissioner’s charge for an inquiry 
into Activision Blizzard Inc.’s (“Activision’s”) unlawful employment practices. 

Activision is a publicly traded California Corporation with its corporate headquarters 
at 2701 Olympic Boulevard Building B, Santa Monica, CA, 90404. It is subject to Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. However, Activision admits to engaging in 
unlawful employment practices. Specifically: 

• Activision uses hiring, training, and promotion policies that discriminate 
because of race, color, religion, and sex, and has promised to continue doing so 
in the future to “balance” its workforce’s immutable characteristics.1 

• Activision has mandated that internal and external talent recruitment teams 
create “diverse slates” of job candidates, thereby limiting, segregating, or 
classifying applicants for employment in a way that deprives or tends to 

 
1 ACTIVISION BLIZZARD INC., 2022 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, AND GOVERNANCE REPORT, at 3, 4, 14, 17, 
21, 23- 24 (May 11, 2023) (hereinafter “2022 ESG REPORT”), https://bit.ly/3PZpMVJ. Notably, 
Activision awards scholarships to “Women, non-binary people and those who are gender fluid. 
[sic]” Id. at 23. What Activision means, precisely, when it uses the terms “non-binary people 
and those who are gender fluid” is unclear. We note that these terms lack fixed or discernable 
legal meaning. However, it is quite clear that Activision is discriminating based on sex, see 
Bostock v. Clayton Cnty., Georgia, 140 S. Ct. 1731, 1742 (2020), and violating 42 U.S.C. § 
1981, both here and in its “social impact investments” where it has contracted for $200 
million in money management services because of the race and sex of its contracting partners. 
2022 ESG REPORT at 40. 
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deprive or limit the employment opportunities of white, Asian, and Jewish 
males with the company. In fact, these mandates exist for the sole purpose of 
adversely affecting the employment status of some individuals because of their 
race, color, religion, or sex, and weeding them out.2 Activision has gone so far 
as to create “tools and systems” favoring some immutable characteristics over 
others, thereby allowing “hiring managers and recruiters to access and better 
understand their [discrimination] pipeline data.”3 These tools include the 
“Diversity Pipeline Dashboard,” which provides an aggregate view of the 
“gender, racial, and ethnic group” membership of potential employees.4  

• Activision prefers and overtly “steers” candidates for employment based on 
race, color, and national origin.5 

• Ninety-five percent of Activision’s executive searches have unlawfully judged 
candidates for hiring or promotion based on race, color, religion, or sex.6 

• Activision unlawfully promises to make race, color, national origin, religion, 
and sex conditions for the director and CEO selection pools.7 

• Eight of the ten “employee network groups” operated by Activision are based 
on race, color, national origin, and/or sex. There are groups for Asian & Pacific 
Islander employees, Black employees, “Latinx” employees, SWANA 
(Southwest Asian and North African) employees, “multicultural” employees, 
“indigenous” or “Aboriginal” employees, LGBT+ employees, and women 
employees. These groups are used for job training and other similar purposes. 
No such group exists for heterosexual white males.  

Activision’s employment practices are patently illegal.8 They are also profoundly 
harmful. Discrimination based on immutable characteristics such as race, color, 
national origin, or sex “generates a feeling of inferiority as to their status in the 
community that may affect their hearts and minds in a way unlikely ever to be 

 
2 Id. at 24.  
3 Id. at 23. 
4 Id. 
5 Id. at 21, n.7. Activision states: 
 

DE&I Sourcing Jam is a strategic initiative aimed at enhancing DE&I within the company. 
Through this initiative, we seek to make a tangible impact by sourcing candidates from 
underrepresented groups and directing them towards critical talent pipelines. Our objective is 
to source highly skilled and proficient professionals from marginalized communities, thereby 
bolstering the representation of diverse talent within the Company’s workforce. Recruiters, 
Sourcers, Hiring Managers and Talent Acquisition Leadership attend the jams. 

 
7 Id. at 53. 
8 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e-2(a), (d); Bob Jones Univ. v. United States, 461 U.S. 574, 593 (1983) 
(“racial discrimination in education violates a most fundamental national public policy, as 
well as rights of individuals”). 
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undone.”9 More broadly, the discrimination highlighted in this case necessarily 
foments contention and resentment; it is “odious and destructive.”10 It truly “is a 
sordid business, this divvying us up” by race or sex.11 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. Please feel free to contact me if you 
have any questions. 

Sincerely,  
 
/s/ Nicholas R. Barry 
Senior Litigation Counsel 
America First Legal Foundation 

 

Cc:  The Honorable Charlotte A. Burrows, Commission Chair 
 The Honorable Jocelyn Samuels, Commission Vice Chair 

The Honorable Keith E. Sonderling, Commissioner 
The Honorable Andrea R. Lucas, Commissioner 
The Honorable Kalpana Kotagal, Commissioner 

  

 
9 Brown v. Bd. of Educ., 347 U.S. 484, 494 (1954). 
10 Texas v. Johnson, 491 U.S. 397, 418 (1989).  
11 League of United Latin Am. Citizens v. Perry, 548 U.S. 399, 511 (2006) (Roberts, C.J., 
concurring in part).  
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